
Meeting Minutes 

State College Borough Design Review Board 

September 20, 2016 

  
The State College Borough Design Review Board (DRB) met on Tuesday, September 
20, 2016 in the State College Borough Municipal Building, 243 South Allen Street in 
Room 241. Chairman Bryant called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. 

  
Members Present  
 
Richard Bryant, Chairman; Bond Reinhardt, Vice-Chairman and Richard Devon 
 
Others Present 
 
Anne Messner, Planner/Zoning Officer; Jenna Wargo, Planner; Denise Rhoads, Staff 
Assistant; Paul Sekula, Sekula Signs; Dave Lopatka, Reuther+Bowen; Mark Saville, 
Sweetland Engineering; Rich O’Donald, Penn State University’s (PSU’s) Office of 
Physical Plant (OPP); Andrew Kilmer, Forum Studio-Landscape Architect and John 
Sickles, DLA Architecture 
 
Approval of Minutes  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Reinhardt and seconded by Mr. Devon to approve the 
September 6, 2016 minutes as submitted. The vote was unanimously in favor. 
 
Chair Report 
 
Chairman Bryant had nothing to report. 

  
Public Hour  
 
No one in the audience wished to discuss items not on the agenda.  

 
Signs 
 
Mr. Sekula presented a sign for a new space at 270 W. Hamilton Avenue (Hamilton 
Square Shopping Center) for Salon Beautiful.  This space will provide for five tenants 
and Salon Beautiful is the first to sign on.  
 
Mr. Devon made a motion to approve this sign and Mr. Reinhardt seconded the motion.  
The vote was unanimously in favor. 
 
Land Development Plan  

 
Final Plan Building Entrance Addition to Nursing Sciences Building, UPD Sub District 5 
Zoning District, The Pennsylvania State University (PSU), owner Reuther+Bowen, 
Engineer, Kimmel Bogrette Architecture + Site, Architect 

 



Mr. Lopatka’s presentation included: 

 He noted the plan has not changed other than the water management plan 
and they have added a landscape plan. 

 Mr. Lopatka noted the changes included adding a concrete tank requested by 
PSU that will tie back into the existing system and adding a landscape plan. 

 
Boards’ comments included: 

 Mr. Devon inquired if the area will be well lit for safety. It was noted it will be.  

 Mr. Devon asked if there are any cameras in this area.  Mr. Lopatka stated 
there are not. 

 Mr. Devon asked if there are signs.  Mr. Lopatka stated there is a sign on the 
building and one inside the building.  

 
Ms. Messner noted Alan Sam, Borough Arborist, was here at the last meeting and was 
concerned about a particular maple and the removal of it.  He did attend a meeting at 
PSU regarding this and determined the tree would be fine for removal. 
 
A motion to approve this plan was made by Mr. Reinhardt and seconded by Mr. Devon. 
The vote was unanimously in favor. 
 
Preliminary Plan New Residential Dormitory, UPD Sub District 5 Zoning District, The 
Pennsylvania State University (PSU), owner Sweetland Engineering, Engineer, Mackley 
Mitchell, Architect 

 
Mr. O’Donald’s presentation included: 

 Mr. O’Donald noted there is a slight change in direction.  Based on a PSU 
press release, the original plan to phase the work over a 12-year span was 
accelerated to reduce it by three years and to move renovations to the third 
residence hall to the beginning of the overall timeline.     

 The new building will have approximately 415 beds.  Some students will be 
relocated due to starting work on the new building earlier than anticipated. 

 
Mr. Saville’s presentation included: 

 The majority of Phase II is in the Borough, but a part is in College Township. 

 He noted they are taking what was permitted in Phase I for storm water and 
what is remaining in Phase II and permitting for storm water. 

 Mr. Saville discussed covered walk ways in the area that are also utility 
tunnels which has provided some opportunities to preserve the trees.  

 With this new building they will be constructing an extension to the utility 
tunnel. 

 There are two watersheds within this project, one to Thompson Run and the 
other into Fox Hollow Road. He noted the net change into Fox Hollow Road is 
not significant. 

 There will be an underground retention area. 
 
 
 



Mr. Kilmer’s presentation included: 

 Their proposal is asking for approval for what they call the “great lawn”. 

 They will be updating the site itself with program spaces, positive circulation 
for students and related to the Downtown Master Plan (DMP), they will be 
doing some service consolidations. 

 Mr. Kilmer noted there will be sub-set open spaces with distinct neighborhood 
gathering areas. 

 Active recreation will include a multi-sport court and a sand volleyball court.  

 He noted they are trying to improve the pedestrian circulation and have 
proposed many “gateway” entries into this area. 

 Mr. Kilmer also noted they are trying to improve vehicular circulation and will 
be removing a lot of surface parking during Phase I.  They did lose some 
parking, but they are trying to move parking to the east edging of East Halls. 

 He noted 271 stalls will be what is remaining at the end of the Phase II. 

 Mr. Kilmer stated their landscape strategy will be shrubs that will be 
foundation plantings around the buildings and they will use ground cover in 
some areas.  

 He noted there is an opportunity for mixed, seasonal plantings. 

 He, especially, wanted to note they will be using the open space (lawns) to 
brand this area because they want to preserve existing trees and canopies. 

 They will be removing trees that are associated with the footprint and parking 
of the building,  

 Mr. Kilmer noted they will be looking at ornamentals to create some seasonal 
interest. 

 
Mr. Sickles’ presentation included: 

 He explained they will have a variety of buildings: low rise (five stories), mid-
rise (eight stories) and towers.  All of these buildings will have lounges and 
student rooms with floor-to-ceiling glass. 

 Mr. Sickles also noted they left covered walk ways in place. 

 He also noted the materials will be brick infill, new windows and precast 
concrete. 

 
Boards’ comments included: 

 Mr. Devon noted the parking area seems to service everyone but students.  

 Mr. Devon asked what the students thought about the bus service on 
campus.  Mr. Kilmer stated they are responding in a positive manner. 

 Chairman Bryant asked what is included in the multi-sport area.  Mr. Kilmer 
stated it is a surface that can be used for any kind of sport and it is a concrete 
slab with a waffle board surface. 

 Chairman Bryant asked if the access to the loading dock will remain the 
same.  Mr. Kilmer stated yes. 

 Mr. Devon asked if they would consider using dogwood and birch trees and 
also how are they making those decisions.  Mr. Kilmer stated they are using 
what has been established in Phase I. 

 Mr. Devon ask if diversity of plantings is a deliberate goal.  Mr. Kilmer stated it 
is. 



 Mr. Devon asked if they would take the aesthetics into consideration.  Mr. 
Kilmer stated they design for a nine-month window which most of that occurs 
in the winter months so, they are looking at fall plantings and color. 

 Mr. Devon asked if they would consider supporting other species i.e. birds, 
butterflies, etc.  Mr. Kilmer stated they are starting to take baby steps in 
incorporating this into the PSU environment. 

 Mr. Devon asked if they experimented with the cladding of the building.  He 
noted that he would like to see more diversity in these buildings.  Mr. 
O’Donald stated the goal is to enhance what is already there.   

 Mr. Reinhardt asked what the net balance is in the impervious surfaces.  Mr. 
Saville stated there is an overall increase between Phase I and Phase II. 

 Mr. Devon asked if there will be any green roofs.  Mr. Saville stated it has 
been discussed in length and it doesn’t seem feasible at this time. 

 
Ms. Messner stated Alan Sam, Borough Arborist reviewed the plan and thought it was a 
good plan and had no suggestions. 
 
A motion to approve this plan was made by Mr. Reinhardt and Mr. Devon seconded the 
motion.  The vote was unanimously in favor. 
 
Official Reports and Correspondence 

  
Work Program: – Ms. Messner asked the Commission if they want to keep the Focus on 
Appearance Award as part of the work program.  The general consensus was to put this 
on hold for now. 

 
Borough Council (BC): Ms. Messner reported that Council appointed both Chairs of the 
DRB and Historic Resources Commission (HRC) to dual roles which will require them to 
attend each other’s meetings until the end of this year.  She also noted Council 
discussed the Property Maintenance Code (PMC) and they stated there is additional 
work that needs to be done.  Council asked for more time to review what they had 
received. 

 
Planning Commission (PC): Ms. Messner reported the PC will be reviewing a sub-
division and lot consolidation plan with the Autoport and the church properties.  She 
noted they will be reviewing the two plans that DRB reviewed today. 
 
Adjournment 
 
With no further business to discuss, Mr. Reinhardt made a motion to adjourn this 
meeting at 11:11 a.m. and Mr. Devon seconded the motion. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
Denise L. Rhoads, Staff Assistant 


